

# HATHAWAY INSTITUTE

# **COMPREHENSIVE HANDBOOK**

**FALL 2025/SPRING 2026** 

Dr. Quintessa Hathaway Founding Chancellor

HathawayInstitute.us

### **Table Of Contents**

| Introduction  | 4  |
|---|----|
| Mission And Vision  | 4  |
| Academic Focus.   | 4  |
| Hours Of Operation  | 5  |
| School Colors   | 5  |
| School Mascot   | 5  |
| Health And Immunization Policy  | 5  |
| Enrollment And Attendance Policies  | 6  |
| Proof of Residency  | 6  |
| Proof of Age of Minor   | 6  |
| Parent/Guardian/ Educational Rights Holder/Caregiver Identification                     | 6  |
| Attendance Monitoring   | 6  |
| Testing Policy  | 8  |
| Middle Grades Completion And Promotion Policy   | 8  |
| Graduation Requirements Policy  | 8  |
| Community Service Requirements  | 9  |
| Student Records Retention Policy  | 9  |
| General Records Retention Schedules   | 10 |
| Grading Scale   | 11 |
| Middle And High School Grade Point Average Scale (4.0)                                  | 12 |
| Grading Weights   | 12 |
| Progress Report Policy  | 12 |
| Promotion And Retention Policy  | 13 |
| Before And After School Tutoring Opportunities  | 13 |
| Gifted And Talented Evaluation  | 13 |
| Student-Teacher Ratio And Class Size Information  | 13 |
| Non-Discrimination Policy   | 14 |
| Non-Discrimination Statement  | 14 |
| Employee Non-Discrimination Policy  | 14 |
| <b>Provision And Policy Explaining Requirement For Criminal History Record Checks</b> . | 15 |
| Fingerprint Or SSN-Based Background Check Reports                                       | 15 |
| Employee Information  | 15 |
| Job Descriptions And Assigned Duties  | 15 |
|   |    |

| Code Of Ethics And Conduct                             |    |
|--|----|
| Educator And Administrator Licensure Policy            | 19 |
| Faculty And Staff Roster Of All Positions              | 19 |
| Teacher, Support Staff, And Administration Evaluations | 19 |
| Curriculum Design                                      | 19 |
| Student Bill Of Rights                                 | 19 |
| Inventories  | 20 |
| Cost Of Attendance                                     | 20 |
| Course Catalog   | 21 |
| Official Transcript Request                            | 41 |
| Student Daily Schedules                                | 41 |
| Daily And Weekly Activities                            | 42 |
| Inclement Weather Policy                               | 42 |
| 2025-2026 Academic Year Calendar                       | 43 |
| Compensation And Benefits                              | 44 |
| 2025-2026 Pay Scales                                   | 44 |
| Payroll Calendar                                       | 46 |
| References   | 47 |

#### Introduction

The Hathaway Institute was established in 2024 by Founding Chancellor Dr. Quintessa Hathaway, a distinguished veteran educator and national educational leader. The online private institution for students in grade seven through twelve (7-12) is headquartered in the Greater Metropolitan Nashville community of Brentwood, Williamson County, Tennessee. The core and elective content are rigorous, college and career driven, and student-centered in an asynchronous and synchronous format.

The Hathaway Institute is a virtual private school servicing grades seven through twelve which strives to be a leading national educational entity which is centered on lifelong student academic excellence, community thriving, scholastic achievement, recruiting and maintaining a premier faculty, interdisciplinary teaching and learning, and sustaining a robust technological infrastructure that meets and exceeds goals around innovation, opportunity access, and equity.

The American educational landscape is transforming. The Hathaway Institute will utilize materials, lesson plans, guides, assessments, protocols, models, and excreta that support and supplant federal and state standards and frameworks. Our objective is to provide powerful, high yield strategies which enable educators, administrators, and the community to produce lasting outcomes.

Our effective and forward-thinking program of study shall reflect the philosophy, goals, objectives, learning experiences, and instructional resources that comprise a specific educational program. The Hathaway Institute has a curriculum that meets and exceeds the needs and current demands of the national economy and global citizenship.

The Hathaway Institute has an interactive educational program and curriculum that expands its capacity to produce positive student learning. We will hone an effective professional learning culture that maintains a foundation of respect, trust, mutual interdependence, an active role by all educators, administrators, and consultants and shared belief that improved learning and academic strength must remain the ongoing goal for all professional experiences.

#### **Mission And Vision**

The mission and vision of The Hathaway Institute is to raise academic achievement so that students soar to higher heights. We shall empower and inspire a generation of learners through superior education, job-embedded and standards-based professional development to educators and administrators which are peerless. The framework and purpose of our educational program is to produce a citizenry who can contribute and compete in the global society.

#### **Academic Focus**

Throughout a learner's matriculation, the academic focus will be placed on a number of strategies that are: research-based, student-centered, instruction-centered, literacy-based, and multiculturally competent. Our multidisciplinary approach will be the bedrock of our progressive educational system, and interdisciplinary educational frameworks shall enhance the academic experience of learners. This approach to pedagogy enriches and strengthens the fabric of education overall. Interdisciplinary assessments will promote proficiency in mathematics, science, social studies, literacy, and the arts. Our curriculum shall be a representation of liberal arts education and higher academia. Multidisciplinary learning shall vary in difficulty which will be steeped in great

expectations with an aim for students to meet the high bar and have the tools to thrive in the national and international communities.

#### Institutional Organization Hours Of Operation

Synchronous Instruction 8:00am-3:00pm Central Time Zone Asynchronous Instruction Twenty-Four (24) Hours

**School Colors**Royal Purple And White

**School Mascot**The Soaring Hawks



#### **Health And Immunization Policy**

The Hathaway Institute believes healthy bodies and minds are the foundation of academic success. Regular visits with one's physicians and up-to-date immunization help protect students' health and readiness to learn. Students are required to stay current on all required immunizations or risk being removed from school.

We will verify every student's immunization compliance as part of enrollment and attendance. In order to prevent the spread of infectious diseases, all students must be fully immunized before entering school and before participating in school-based activities. Furthermore, if a student has additional health needs that must be addressed while at school, such as medication, asthma or allergies, please ensure all health forms are completed, and the school health personnel are aware of these health requirements.

The following seven (7) common childhood vaccines, Diphtheria, Pertussis, Tetanus (DTaP), Hepatitis B, Haemophilus influenzae type b (Hib), MMR, polio, varicella, and meningococcal (meningitis), are required for pupils to enroll in the Hathaway Institute. An acceptable proof of immunization for enrollment is mandatory. Among the different types of acceptable documentation are medical records, a health department or school form, information from the state's Immunization Information System (IIS), or a "certificate of immunization," which may be issued by, for example, a state health department or a physician's office. Documentation must include the type of immunization given, number of doses given for immunizations that require multiple doses, and dates immunizations were given.

#### **Enrollment And Attendance Policies**

As a part of the enrollment application, parent(s) or guardian(s) will enter information about the student enrolling and will need to upload the following documents:

#### **Proof of Residency**

Please submit the following acceptable documents:

- ✓ Utility service contract, bills or payment receipts (i.e., gas, water, or electricity)
- ✓ Property taxes, rental or lease agreement, current rental receipt with address of property on receipt
- ✓ Official government income documents (Social Security income statement)
- ✓ Current pay stub
- ✓ Voter registration

When school officials have reason to believe that the address provided by the parent and/or guardian is incorrect, or was falsely reported, a due diligence effort to obtain the correct information will be made and documented.

#### **Proof of Age of Minor**

Please submit the following acceptable documents:

- ✓ Birth certificate
- ✓ Baptismal certificate
- ✓ Passport
- ✓ Court order
- ✓ Health office/vital statistics record of birth certificate date

#### Parent/Guardian/Educational Rights Holder/Caregiver Identification

Please submit one of the following acceptable documents:

- ✓ Student's birth certificate or baptismal certificate or Court order establishing the parent/guardian relationship. and
- ✓ Adult's government-issued photo identification (Driver's license or DMV identification card)

#### **Attendance Monitoring**

We will ensure that student attendance is recorded daily, accurately, and in a timely manner for all students in all courses. Educators are required to submit and certify attendance in Google Classroom within the first (1st) ten (10) minutes of each class.

Administration and attendance personnel shall require a satisfactory explanation from the parent and/or guardian of a student, either virtually, in-person, or by written note, whenever the student is absent for part or all of a school day, and if it delineates what types of absences may be excused by a person authorized to excuse absences. All absence verification and notes shall be maintained for five (5) years for audit purposes. Every effort shall be made by the school administration and staff to notify parents/ guardians of their child's uncleared absences, and the steps required to clear all absences.

School administration and attendance personnel will be responsible for identifying, flagging, processing, and documenting using all due diligence for no show students. We will process no show students at the end of the student's first expected instructional day. School shall exercise all

due diligence efforts to locate no show students and proper documentation shall be entered in Google Suite.

The school will define chronic absentee as "a student who is absent on five percent (5%) or more of the school days in the school year when the total number of days a student is absent is divided by the total number of days the student is enrolled and school was actually taught in the regular day schools, exclusive of Saturdays and Sundays. The Hathaway Institute defines chronic absenteeism as an attendance rate of ninety-five percent (95%) or below. Once a student approaches this level, a meeting will be held to identify viable solutions to the barriers preventing regular school attendance.

Upon a student's initial classification as a truant, the school will immediately notify the student's parent and/or guardian. An initial notification of truancy (NOT) letter will be generated and mailed to their home address. If needed, a second (2<sup>nd</sup>) or third (3<sup>rd</sup>) notification of truancy (NOT) letter will be mailed in the event of additional truancies. Administrators and attendance personnel are responsible for maintaining student enrollment, attendance, and withdrawal accounting records to ensure their availability for audits.

An absence is considered when it is supposed by appropriate documentation and falls under accepted reasonable, including:

- a. Personal illness (with doctor's note and parental confirmation)
- b. Medical appointment (with provider documentation)
- c. Bereavement (for immediate family)
- d. Religious holidays
- e. Court appearances
- f. Authorized school-related activities

Students must submit documentation within three (3) days of returning to be considered or excused absence status. Repeated absences of either categorization mat result in academic penalties or disciplinary actions. Furthermore, the district of residence will be notified of five or more (5+) absences, in instances of truancy, expulsion, transfer, and withdrawal.

An unexcused absence designation is those that do not meet the criteria above or lack appropriate documentation, including:

- a. Oversleeping
- b. Family vacation that overlap school hours
- c. Absence without parent(s) or guardian(s) notification

Furthermore, in accordance with the Tennessee Code Annotated § 49-6-3007, After the pupil has accumulated five (5) unexcused absences, and after given adequate time, as determined by the Hathaway Institute and attendance designee, the pupil's parent, guardian, or other person having control of she or he has failed to turn in documentation to excuse those absences, the institution may implement the truancy intervention requirements of the second tier of the progressive truancy plan.

#### **Testing Policy**

Formative and summative assessments shall be a central focus as we seek to understand school performance, academic success, and the pathway from early childhood to adult independence, and predictor of college and career readiness and success.

Academic assessment gives parents and guardians, the administration, faculty, and staff important information on student performance, as well as the effectiveness of instructional methods, and curriculum, providing the opportunity to adjust pedagogical methods for individual students.

Students will be required to take the state's criterion-based assessment; as well as scheduled diagnostic, formative, and interim assessments throughout the academic year. Furthermore, high schoolers are to take the American College Test (ACT) or Scholastic Aptitude Test/Scholastic Assessment Test (SAT) as a graduation requirement.

#### **Middle Grades Completion And Promotion Policy**

The following course subjects must be mastered each academic year for promotion to the next grade.

| Courses               | Credits |
|-----------------------|---------|
| English Language Arts | 1.00    |
| Mathematics           | 1.00    |
| Physical Education    | 1.00    |
| Science               | 1.00    |
| Social Studies        | 1.00    |
| Electives             | 2.00    |

# Graduation Requirements Policy High School

Students may complete the high school graduation requirements over three or more (3+) years, as stated in their individualized graduation plan signed and verified by their guidance counselor.

| Courses               | Credits |
|-----------------------|---------|
| Computer Science      | 1.00    |
| Electives             | 3.00    |
| English Language Arts | 4.00    |
| Fine Arts*            | 1.00    |
| Health And Wellness   | 1.00    |
| Mathematics           | 4.00    |
| Personal Finance      | 0.50    |
| Physical Education    | 0.50    |
| Science               | 4.00    |
| Social Studies        | 4.00    |
| World Language*       | 2.00    |

<sup>\*</sup>May be waived by the school for students, under certain circumstances, to expand and enhance the elective focus.

#### **Community Service Requirements**

Community service refers to a person who performs tasks for the benefit of his or her local community. Students are encouraged to conduct duties which are aligned with their interests, expand their horizons, strengthen their sense of civic engagement and nationalism. broaden their educational, developmental, and social goals, and contribute to them becoming active global citizens.

Students are to complete a minimum of twenty-five (25) community service hours per academic year. Examples of non-approved community service activities include, but are not limited to, purchasing items or donating items for clothing or food drives; taking a universal academic, social, emotional, behavioral screeners, working for or volunteering at a motel, hotel, or the like, working for or volunteering at a for-profit small business; or volunteering for an organization that is not a registered as non-profit or does not hold a 501(c)(3) status.

Non-profit organizations may include, but are not limited to, religious entities, charitable organizations, civic organizations, or other nonprofit organizations that are otherwise created for scientific, literary, or educational purposes. Examples of non-profit organizations may include, but are not limited to, homeless shelters, boy scouts, girl scouts, food pantries, or humane organizations.

#### **Student Records Retention Policy**

Student records may exist in a number of formats, including paper, digital environment, and microfilm or microfiche. These records retention guidelines apply to student records and data stored on any and all media.

Admissions Documents And Application Materials (Whether Accepted Or Rejected)

| Title                      | Description                      | Minimum Retention          |
|----------------------------|----------------------------------|----------------------------|
| Admission Letters          | Notices of admission, waitlist,  | Three (3) years after      |
|                            | and denials                      | application submission     |
| Relevant Correspondences   | Student's acceptance or          | Three (3) years after      |
|                            | rejection                        | application submission     |
| Waiver Of Rights Of Access | Waiving right of access to       | Three (3) years after      |
| (admissions)               | admission letters of             | application submission     |
|                            | recommendation                   |                            |
|                            | Admission application,           |                            |
|                            | achievement tests, home          |                            |
|                            | language survey, birth           |                            |
| Application For Admission  | certificate, withdrawal(s),      | Permanent                  |
| Or Readmission             | signature or parent(s) and       |                            |
|                            | guardian(s), future destination, |                            |
|                            | and other information deemed     |                            |
|                            | appropriate by the Tennessee     |                            |
|                            | Department of Education.         |                            |
| Medical Records            | i.e., Immunization records       | Five (5) years after first |
|                            |                                  | semester of enrollment     |
| Letters Of Recommendation  | Letters of recommendation        | Three (3) years after      |
| (admissions)               | and interview questionnaires     | application submission     |

| Test Scores                                     | i.e., State assessments, ACT, SAT, and etc.  | Permanent   |
|---|--|---|
| Transcripts                                     | Middle and high school transcripts   | Permanent   |
| Cumulative Record                               | If the student has transferred out of the school, a copy of the inactive cumulative record will be retained along with the student's withdrawal form as a permanent record.  For students whose records are not transferred, the original is a permanent record. | Permanent   |
| High School Diploma Certification and Roster of | List of graduating seniors and preparation of diplomas.  | Permanent   |
| Graduates                                       | propulation of diplomas.   |   |
| Academic Advisement<br>Records                  | i.e., sign-in sheets and correspondences   | Seven (7) years after first (1 <sup>st</sup> ) semester of enrollment |
| Academic Warning,<br>Suspension, And Dismissal  | Notice of academic action related to academic and non-performance and deficiency   | Permanent   |
| Capstone Project                                | Service and internship project documentation   | Permanent   |

# **General Records Retention Schedules**

|                           | Dagawindian                   |                              |
|---------------------------|-------------------------------|------------------------------|
| Title                     | Description                   | Minimum Retention            |
| Annual Reports            | Annual Statistical Reports    | Permanent                    |
|                           | concerning admissions         |                              |
|                           | activities, enrollment        |                              |
|                           | statistics, etc.              |                              |
|                           | i.e., brochures, catalogues,  |                              |
| Recruitment Materials     | etc., and dealing with        | Permanent                    |
|                           | admissions, programs, and     |                              |
|                           | scholarships                  |                              |
| Administrators And        | State Certificates            | Permanent                    |
| Educators Certificates    |                               |                              |
| Examinations              | Examinations and graded       | Three (3) years after        |
| (Final/Graded Coursework) | assignments                   | submission                   |
|                           | Student and/or parent(s) or   | Three (3) years after        |
| Grade Appeal/Complaint    | guardian(s) final grade       | submission                   |
|                           | dispute                       |                              |
| Faculty Grade Book And    | Official record of student    | Five (5) years after each    |
| Grade Change Forms        | work completion               | semester                     |
| Course Registration and   | i.e., student schedules,      | Until the administrative and |
| Enrollment Records        | rosters, add/drop/withdrawal, | staff need is satisfied      |

| Email Data And Information  | Emails and other electronic communication that authorize academic/enrollment actions and/or provide directory/non directory information about administration, faculty, staff, students, and parent(s) and guardian(s) | Until the administrative and staff need is satisfied   |
|---|---|--|
| Course Catalogs   | Published annually or bi-<br>annually, record of courses,<br>diplomas, and programs of<br>study offered   | Permanent  |
| Race, Ethnicity, Nationality,<br>Gender, And Sex<br>Demographic Reporting | All reports of student enrollment, graduation, and other metrics by these demographics  | Permanent  |
| Federal, State, And Local<br>Government Disclosure<br>Records             | i.e., cost of attendance,<br>accreditation, textbook<br>information, and security<br>reports  | Five (5) years from date of required disclosure  |
| Student Financial Aid (SFA) Records                                       | i.e., accrediting and licensing agency review, approvals, and reports, audit reports and school responses, records pertaining to financial responsibility and standards of administrative capability                  | Five (5) years from date of award  |
| Fiscal Records And<br>Requirements For Specific<br>Aid                    | i.e., bank statements for accounts, fiscal program transactions, records of student accounts, and all other fiscal records/reports  | Five (5) years from date of receipt and award  |
| Employee Contracts  | Contracts between school and all employees  | Retain seven (7) years after termination of employment, then destroy, and/or Based on statute of limitations for actions for breach of contract. |
| Census Data   | Detailed count of all student records that are basis for state and/or federal funding.  | Five (5) years after first semester of enrollment  |

# **Grading Scale**

| A-Excellent/Excellent Scholarship/Superior          | 90%–100% |
|---|----------|
| B-Above Average/Good Scholarship/Mastery/Proficient | 80%-89%  |
| C-Average/Satisfactory Scholarship                  | 70%-79%  |
| D-Below Average/Low Performance                     | 60%-69%  |
| F-Failing/Poor Scholarship                          | 0%-59%   |

| No Grade       | NG |
|----------------|----|
| Satisfactory   | S  |
| Unsatisfactory | U  |
| Withdrawn      | W  |

## Middle And High School Grade Point Average Scale (4.0)

Below is the standard scale utilized by the school. Grade Point Average (GPA) Conversion To A 4.0 Scale:

| Letter Grade | Percent Grade | Points |
|--------------|---------------|--------|
| A+           | 97%-100%      | 4.00   |
| A            | 93%-96%       | 4.00   |
| A-           | 90%-92%       | 4.00   |
| B+           | 87%-89%       | 3.00   |
| В            | 83%-86%       | 3.00   |
| B-           | 80%-82%       | 3.00   |
| C+           | 77%-79%       | 2.00   |
| С            | 73%-76%       | 2.00   |
| C-           | 70%-72%       | 2.00   |
| D+           | 66%-69%       | 1.00   |
| D            | 63%-65%       | 1.00   |
| D-           | 60%-62%       | 1.00   |
| F            | 0-59%         | 0.00   |

## **Grading Weights**

| Discussion/Class Participation/Classwork       | 20% |
|--|-----|
| Midterm and Final Examination                  | 30% |
| Quizzes  | 10% |
| Written Assignments/Performance Tasks/Projects | 40% |

#### **Progress Report Policy**

Evaluation and monitoring of student progress and achievement to all stakeholders are an important function of the school. Progress reports and report cards for each pupil will be used as one method of communication regarding student academic performance.

Educators will prepare progress reports according to the time schedule on the official school calendar. They are encouraged to report student progress to parent(s) and guardian(s) through the use of written communications, telephone conferences, and personal virtual conferences. Such communication should be emphasized in the case of satisfactory and unsatisfactory student progress and/or significant changes in student performance. The grade marked at the end of each semester is the final grade for each course and becomes a part of the permanent record. The grades at the end of the first (1<sup>st</sup>) and third (3<sup>rd</sup>) marking period of the school year are progress reports. are required to contact parents if a student is in danger of failing. A two-way communication, regardless of the method used, between the school and home should be of mutual concern to the student, parent(s) and guardian(s), teacher, and school administration.

#### **Promotion And Retention Policy**

A student who fails a course is mandated to retake it and have the failure evaluated and a determination made as to the reason for the failure. The student will be required to repeat the course during the following semester or during the summer. If a student fails two (2) or more courses, an academic probation conference shall be held with the student, parent(s) or guardian(s), educator(s), and guidance counselor and additional supports will be implements to improve academic standing. If low academic performance continues, an enrollment redetermination conference will be conducted to state separation or remaining in the school.

Students who achieve at levels deemed acceptable by local and state standards shall be promoted to the next grade level at the completion of each school year.

Retention of a student may be considered when faculty, staff, administration, parent(s) and guardian(s) feel that it is in the best interest of the student. Physical development, maturity, and emotional factors shall be considered, as well as scholastic achievement. The final decision shall be made by the Chancellor or designee.

#### **Before And After School Tutoring Opportunities**

Our educators understand the importance of offering support outside of the classroom. Students have the opportunity to seek additional support or guidance through tutoring before and after school by appointment only. Additional support to complement classroom instruction will exist by building organizational and study skills, fostering independence, self-reliance, self-advocacy, and scholastic confidence.

#### **Gifted And Talented Evaluation**

The Hathaway Institute will adopt procedures for the academic acceleration of gifted and talented students. The school will assess student's readiness and motivation for acceleration and match the level, complexity, and pace of the curriculum to a student to achieve the best type of academic acceleration for that student.

#### **Student-Teacher Ratio And Class Size Information**

The student counts used for this method will be official for the 2025-2026 academic year on October 1, 2025, student counts based on the fall submission and enrollment in our internal recordkeeping. By using the October 1 data, we ensure that each student is only counted at one (1) school and one (1) district and consistent logic is used for determining grade level for the student for the year. This data is subject to all validations used for the administration reporting and specifically the October 1 counts. The October 1 date census may not represent the overall number of students served during the year.

The staff full-time equivalent (FTE) data are pulled from the fall submission of the staff assignment data reported to the State of Tennessee Department of Education, Educator Licensure Division that represents staffing on October 1, 2025. This data is subject to all validations used for the staff reporting system. Because the staff assignments are for all licensed professionals, we will only use assignment codes which the state has identified as representing a teaching assignment and only included those that represented teaching assignments in grades seven through twelve (7-12).

For assignments that represent multiple grade levels, multiple methods will be used to determine what fraction of the assignment full-time equivalent (FTE) would be assigned to each grade level. We will merge the staff data and enrollment data at the grade level. Then, we evenly split the full-time equivalent (FTE) for the assignment across the grades that had actual October 1 enrollment in them. If there was no enrollment data for the grades the assignment represented, we split the full-time equivalent (FTE) equally across all grades the assignment could represent at the schoolwide level.

#### Non-Discrimination Policy Non-Discrimination Statement

It is the policy of the Hathaway Institute to prohibit unlawful discrimination, harassment and retaliation on the basis of any protected category by the Constitution of the United States, Tennessee Code Annotated, and any other state of association and establishment, and applicable federal, state or local laws or ordinances, including but not limited to Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (Title VI), Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (Title VII), Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967 (ADEA), Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 (Title IX), the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA), and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (Section 504), specifically, but not limited to, discrimination, harassment or retaliation on the basis of sexual orientation, gender or sex (includes gender identity, gender expression, pregnancy, childbirth, breastfeeding, and pregnancy related medical conditions), race or ethnicity, ethnic group identification, ancestry, nationality, national origin, religion, color, mental or physical disability, age, immigration status, marital status, registered domestic partner status, genetic information, political belief or affiliation (not unionrelated), military status, unfavorable discharge from military service, or on the basis of a person's association with a person or group with one or more of these actual or perceived characteristics in the educational programs or activities the Hathaway Institute operates.

Concerns or inquiries regarding sex discrimination, harassment or retaliation can be made to Chancellor Dr. Quintessa Hathaway and/or the U.S. Department of Education Office for Civil Rights (OCR). The U.S. Department of Education Office for Civil Rights (OCR) contact information is <a href="https://www.ed.gov/about/ed-offices/ocr">https://www.ed.gov/about/ed-offices/ocr</a>.

#### **Employee Non-Discrimination Policy**

The Hathaway Institute is an equal opportunity organization and does not discriminate based on an applicant's or employee's race, color, religion, sex, pregnancy, medical condition, sexual orientation, gender identity, national origin, ancestry, citizenship, age, physical or mental disability, or any other characteristic protected by state or federal law.

If an employee feels she or he have been subjected to any form of unlawful discrimination, including harassment, please notify administration and/or the U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Office to immediately undertake an effective, thorough and objective investigation and attempt to resolve the situation. If either entity determines that unlawful discrimination or harassment has occurred, effective action will be taken commensurate with the severity of the offense. Appropriate action also will be taken to deter any future discrimination.

#### **Provision And Policy Explaining Requirement For Criminal History Record Checks**

The Hathaway Institute is committed to running multiple, periodic background checks on all adults working and volunteering in our educational setting. Checking our administration, faculty, and staff members', vendor employees', and volunteers' backgrounds will guarantee that every adult consistently working with our school community is evaluated through a rigorous background check process.

As part of our background check process, these candidates must complete and submit an approved IdentoGo and Live Scan fingerprinting checking.

#### **Fingerprint Or SSN-Based Background Check Reports**

IdentoGO and Livescan shall conduct our fingerprint-based background checks to run searches against both Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI), Tennessee and National Sex Offender Registries, the Tennessee Department of Health Abuse Registry, and state criminal databases to create a complete criminal profile of the prospective employee or applicant.

# **Employee Information Job Descriptions And Assigned Duties**

All Course Subject, General, And Special Educators

Instruct students in content areas at the secondary level designated according to state licensure, certification, and subject matter specifically assigned by the administration.

#### Essential Functions

- ✓ Establish and enforce rules for behavior and procedures for maintaining order among the students for whom responsible. Follow district policy and building procedures associated with student management; consistently demonstrate proficient classroom management skills
- ✓ Maintain a cooperative relationship with other faculty and staff members.
- ✓ Demonstrate a high individual rate attendance (goal being ninety-five percent (95%) or above annually) in order to maximize student learning.
- ✓ Follow all building procedures regarding attendance and punctuality, keeping your administrators informed.
- ✓ Establish clear objectives for all lessons, units, and projects, and communicate those objectives to students.
- ✓ Prepare materials and classrooms for class activities.
- ✓ Adapt instructional methods and instructional materials to meet students' varying needs and interests.
- ✓ Maintain accurate and complete student records as required by laws, district policies, and administrative regulations.
- ✓ Assign and grade class work and homework in a timely manner. Communicate student progress by through a variety of mediums.
- ✓ Enforce all school policies, administrative procedures, and rules governing students
- ✓ Plan and conduct activities for a balanced program of instruction using evidence-based, data-driven, and researched-based best practices.
- ✓ Prepare for assigned classes and show written evidence of preparation upon request of immediate supervisor(s).

- ✓ Use technology to support instruction.
- ✓ Meet with parent(s) and/or guardian(s) to discuss our student's progress.
- ✓ Prepare objectives and comprehensive lesson plans following course syllabus, curriculum maps, and the state frameworks and standards.
- ✓ Attend and lead professional meetings, educational conferences, and teacher training workshops in order to maintain and improve professional competence.
- ✓ Collaborate with other teachers and administrators in the development, evaluation, and revision of secondary school programs.
- ✓ Develop, implement, update, and prepare reports on students and activities as required by administration.
- ✓ Select, store, order, issue, and inventory classroom equipment, materials, and supplies.
- ✓ Administer and proctor standardized ability and achievement tests according to state requirements and interpret results to determine students' strengths and areas of need.
- ✓ Attend faculty and staff meetings and serve on committees as required; as well as other duties assigned by administration.
- ✓ Maintain a valid state educator license with appropriate certification

#### Administrative Assistant

To ensure the smooth and efficient operation of the school office so that the office's maximum positive impact on the education of students can be realized.

#### **Qualifications**

- 1. Minimum of high school diploma or equivalent. Additional post-secondary education and/or training are highly preferred.
- 2. Two (2) years of successful working experience in the bookkeeping field or an associate's degree or higher in a business/accounting area.
- 3. Experience in computer operations of Microsoft Office suite products required.
- 4. Evidence of strong skills in meeting and dealing with district employees and the public in a manner that will promote a positive image of the school district.
- 5. Proficient in the use of a calculator and the ability to type sixty (60) words per minute with accuracy.
- 6. Ability to produce routine reports and correspondence as needed, including monthly financial reports.
- 7. Strong oral and written communications skills.
- 8. Must meet all set deadlines in a timely manner as set forth by the district and principal.
- 9. as well as expertise in accounting software and being able to proficiently pass bookkeeper's skills assessment.

#### Essential Functions

The following statements of duties and responsibilities are intended to describe the general nature and level of work being performed by individuals assigned to this position. These statements are not intended to be an exhaustive list of all duties and responsibilities required of all personnel within this position.

- 1. Performs the usual office routines and practices associated with a busy, yet productive and smoothly run office.
- 2. Receives incoming telephone calls, assists visitors and vendors, and communicates general information concerning the program to our stakeholders.

- 3. Prepares all written reports, memorandums, and communications as required by the administration.
- 4. Maintains accurate records of attendance for all faculty, staff, and administration.
- 5. Prepares weekly payroll reports on teachers, substitutes, and custodial staff.
- 6. Checks with teachers for needed supplies and records, forms, etc.
- 7. Keeps daily record of attendance and total enrollment of students.
- 8. Notifies parent(s) and guardian(s) of any student who becomes ill during the day, etc.
- 9. Maintains all bookkeeping records and inventories of school property.
- 10. Registers all new students and assists with other tasks related to student enrollment.
- 11. Completes and submits required reports before and by deadlines.
- 12. Maintains confidentiality of material and information.
- 13. Assists in submitting work orders to keep the school maintained.
- 14. Performs other duties as assigned.

#### Criterion For Assistant Principals And Executive Principal

In addition to meeting minimum eligibility requirements established by Founding Chancellor Dr. Quintessa Hathaway, applicants for positions of assistant principal and principal must demonstrate their capacity to lead a school in which all students are on track to matriculate and graduate on time and/or at an accelerate timeframe from middle school and high school ready for college and careers, as measured by current state departments of education accountability structures. Furthermore, applicants for the position of assistant principal and principal must meet the following educational, managerial, administrative, and pedagogic experience qualifications:

#### Instructional Leadership

- ✓ Supporting implementation of rigorous, engaging and coherent curricula.
- ✓ Ensuring research-based, effective instruction that yields high-quality student work.
- ✓ Ensuring that assessment practices are aligned to curricula and inform instruction.

#### School Culture

- ✓ Establishing and maintaining structures for positive learning environment, inclusive culture, and student success.
- ✓ Establishing and supporting a culture of learning that communicates high expectations for all stakeholders.

#### Structures for School Improvement

- ✓ Aligning resources to support school goals and meet student needs.
- ✓ Fostering support for a school-wide theory of action and goals across the school community. Supporting and evaluating teachers through a research-based, common teaching framework.
- ✓ Engaging teacher teams in collaborative practices using the inquiry approach to improve classroom practice.
- ✓ Regularly evaluating school level decisions with a focus on rigorous and engaging curriculum standards.

#### Prior Pedagogic Experience

✓ Principals must have evidence of success for at least five (5) years of prior full-time experience in pedagogic positions to be eligible for selection and appointment.

✓ Assistant Principals must have at least five years of prior full-time experience in a pedagogic position to be eligible for selection and appointment.

Mental Functions, Physical Requirements, and Working Conditions Of All Employees While performing the duties of this job, the employee is regularly required to sit, stand, walk, go up and down stairs, operate foot and hand controls, use a telephone and write. Occasionally the employee must lift and/or move up to twenty or more (20+) pounds. This position requires accurate perceiving of sound, near and far vision, depth perception, handling and working with educational materials and/or objects, and providing oral information. Must have the ability to work for the duration of the daily contracted time period, and to be physically present and at assigned work, with only infrequent unexcused absences, during the contract year. Additional technical skills, knowledge, and abilities may be recommended by the immediate supervisor.

#### **Code Of Ethics And Conduct**

The Code of Ethics defines minimum standards of ethical conduct for all administrators, faculty, and staff of the Hathaway Institute.

**Standard 1:** Every administrator, faculty and staff member are to maintain a professional relationship with each student, both inside and outside the classroom and school setting.

**Standard 2:** Every administrator, faculty and staff member are expected to be competent regarding his or her professional practice, inclusive of professional and ethical behavior, skills, knowledge, dispositions, and responsibilities relating to his or her organizational position.

**Standard 3:** Every administrator, faculty and staff member must honestly fulfill reporting obligations associated with professional practices, and a good steward of funding and property.

**Standard 4:** Every administrator, faculty and staff members are to practice integrity regarding the acceptance of any gratuity, gift, compensation or favor that might impair or appear to influence professional decisions or actions and shall refrain from using their position for personal gain.

**Standard 5:** Every administrator, faculty and staff members are to maintain the confidentiality of information about students and colleagues obtained in the course of their professional service that is protected under state and federal law and regulations, or the written policies of the Hathaway Institute, unless disclosure serves a professional purpose as allowed or required by law or regulations.

**Standard 6:** Every administrator, faculty and staff member are to keep in confidence secure standardized test materials and results, and maintains integrity regarding test administration procedures; as well as maintain the confidentiality of information about students and colleagues obtained in the course of their professional service that is protected under state and federal law and regulations, or the written policies of the Hathaway Institute, unless disclosure serves a professional purpose as allowed or required by law or regulations.

**Standard 7:** Every administrator, faculty and staff members are to refrain from the following while performing professional duties and activities associated with the Hathaway Institute:

- ✓ using, possessing and/or being under the influence of alcohol or unauthorized drugs and substances, and/or possessing items prohibited by law, or
- ✓ possessing or using tobacco or tobacco-related products, e-cigarettes, e-liquid, or vapor products, or
- ✓ abusing and misusing prescription medications or other authorized substances as evidenced by impairment

#### **Educator And Administrator Licensure Policy**

The Hathaway Institute in similar fashion to the Tennessee Code Annotated §49-1-302, we shall adopt policies governing the qualifications, requirements, and standards of, and provide the licenses and certificates for, all administrative assistance and support staff (when applicable), educators, principals, and assistant principals. Additionally, in likeness with Tennessee Code Annotated §49-5-101 provides that no person shall be employed as a principal, teacher, or supervisor of our middle or high schools or receive any pay for such services without proper licensure. This policy sets the minimum standards and requirements for licensure to ensure that individuals who serve in our classrooms and school are prepared and equipped to serve the students.

#### **Faculty And Staff**

# **Teacher, Support Staff, And Administration Evaluations**

Both formal and informal evaluations will be conducted throughout the academic year. Classroom walkthroughs and other types of observations will be employed. Two (2) formal evaluations will be held for all faculty, staff, and administrators in years one through three (1-3) of our operation.

#### **Curriculum Design**

Educators and the instructional leadership shall collaborate on curriculum design. Each course will have a syllabus. Please see the administration for the template.

#### **Student Bill Of Rights**

All students at the Hathaway Institute shall guarantee a high-quality education where learning is enriched, social development is cultivated, global citizenship is honed, words become deeds to meet the needs of one's community, and excellence in every aspect of humanity is the north star.

#### Students have a right to:

- 1. attend school and receive a high school diploma as provided by law;
- 2. be in a safe and supportive learning environment, free from discrimination, harassment, bullying, and bigotry, and to file a complaint if they feel that they are subject to this behavior
- 3. receive courtesy and respect from others regardless of actual or perceived age, race, creed, color, gender, gender identity, gender expression, religion, national origin, citizenship or immigration status, weight, sexual orientation, physical and/or emotional condition, disability, marital status, and political beliefs;
- 4. receive a written copy of the school's handbook, policies, and procedures early in the school year or upon admission to the school during the school year;
- 5. be informed about diploma requirements, including courses and examinations and information on assistance to meet those requirements;
- 6. be informed about required health, cognitive, and language screening examinations;
- 7. be informed about courses and programs that are available in the school and the opportunity to have input in the selection of elective courses;
- 8. receive professional instruction;
- 9. know the grading criteria for each subject area and/or course offered by the school and to receive grades for schoolwork completed based on established criteria;
- 10. be informed of educational progress and receive periodic evaluations both informally and through formal progress reports;

- 11. be notified in a timely manner of the possibility of being held over in the grade or of failing a course:
- 12. be notified of the right of appeal regarding holdover or failing grades;
- 13. confidentiality in the handling of student records maintained by the school system;
- 14. request or by parental or guardian request to have their contact information withheld from institutions of higher learning and/or military recruiters; in order to protect the rights of students and parent(s) or guardian(s) to determine how student information is released to the military, schools that administer the Armed Services Vocational Aptitude Battery (ASVAB) will not release student scores to military recruiters unless both the parent(s) or guardian(s) and the student provide written consent.)
- 15. receive guidance, counseling, and advice for personal, social, educational, career, and vocational development.

#### **Inventories**

Any items pertaining to the Hathaway Institute will be held in a digital inventory given the school is virtual.

#### **Cost Of Attendance**

| Annual School Tuition And Technology Fees  | \$7,000.00 |
|--|------------|
| Required Fees  |            |
| (including school uniforms and paraphernalia, and class activities and retreats) | \$500.00   |
| Senior Graduation Fees   | \$400.00   |

<sup>\*</sup>Tentative: A software company may be utilized for bill payment of tuition, grant and aid, and accounting systems utilized by school.

# Course Catalog Elective Courses

| Subject | Course Number | Course Title                 | Course Description  |
|---------|---------------|------------------------------|---|
| ELE     | BRSL.100      | Braille And Sign Language I  | This course will train scholars in reading and writing of contracted Unified English Braille.  They will learn to read embossed braille visually and to write Unified English Braille using a Perkins Braille Writer, computer keyboard for six-key entry, and a slate and stylus. Topics include techniques for reading readiness, tracking, tactile discrimination, and reading methods. Additionally, the use of technology to produce braille will be reviewed.  Furthermore, students shall discover the vibrant deaf community and all that it has to offer; develop an appreciation for American Sign Language as its own, unique language; consider the history and influence of deaf and hard of hearing culture; and learn the various  |
| ELE     | BRSL.200      | Braille And Sign Language II | elements of a sign, the alphabet, and basic words to immediately employ.  This more advanced course will train scholars in reading and writing of contracted Unified English Braille. They will learn to read embossed braille visually and to write Unified English Braille using a Perkins Braille Writer, computer keyboard for six-key entry, and a slate and stylus. Topics include techniques for reading readiness, tracking, tactile discrimination, and reading methods.  Additionally, the use of technology to produce braille will be reviewed.  Furthermore, students shall discover the vibrant deaf community and all that it has to offer; develop an appreciation for American Sign Language as its own, unique language; consider the history and influence of deaf and hard of hearing culture; and learn the various elements of a sign, the alphabet, and basic words to immediately employ. |
| ELE     | CAPR.100      | Capstone Project             | The Capstone Project, like similar service projects, showcases students as "effective communicators, complex thinkers, and productive workers" (Ogdensburg). The Capstone Project allows students to learn about  |

|     |            |                                 | themselves by moving an idea or dream toward       |
|-----|------------|---------------------------------|--|
|     |            |                                 | a topic of interest, specialization, community     |
|     |            |                                 | need, or career choice. Students will be paired    |
|     |            |                                 |  |
|     |            |                                 | with advisor(s) and mentor(s) to help them and     |
|     |            |                                 | to link them with community resources.             |
|     |            |                                 | Throughout the project, students demonstrate       |
|     |            |                                 | their abilities to apply what they have learned    |
|     |            |                                 | during their entire program of study.              |
|     |            |                                 | At the same time, they explore their readiness     |
|     |            |                                 | for college and the workplace.                     |
|     |            |                                 | Scholars enrolled in this course will learn and    |
|     |            |                                 | engage in exercises on basic financial skills,     |
| ELE | ENTI.100   | Entrepreneurship And Innovation | networking, feedback, strategic thinking,          |
|     |            |                                 | communication and problem-solving skills,          |
|     |            |                                 | negotiation, growth mindset, and beginning the     |
|     |            |                                 | entrepreneurial journey.                           |
|     |            |                                 | Scholars will gain real-life language use, the     |
|     |            |                                 | integration of French and Francophone culture      |
|     |            |                                 | and linguistics, and the acquisition of the four   |
|     |            |                                 | skills: reading, listening, writing, and speaking. |
|     |            |                                 | Also, learn contemporary French and                |
|     |            |                                 | Francophone institutions and mores,                |
|     |            |                                 | communicate and interact with other speakers       |
|     |            |                                 | of French in diverse situations and in             |
| ELE | FREN.100   | French I                        | conversations involving everyday topics,           |
| LLL | 11(21).100 | T Tellen 1                      | develop listening skills and understand the gist   |
|     |            |                                 | of a variety of communication modes (i.e.,         |
|     |            |                                 | television, video, radio, etcetera); read a broad  |
|     |            |                                 | range of printed materials for general, specific   |
|     |            |                                 | and practical information; write notes, letters    |
|     |            |                                 | and compositions on familiar topics with a         |
|     |            |                                 | good command of vocabulary and sentence            |
|     |            |                                 | S  |
|     |            |                                 | structure in a cohesive and organized manner.      |
|     |            |                                 | This more advanced course will give scholars a     |
|     |            |                                 | more real-life language use, the integration of    |
|     |            |                                 | French and Francophone culture and                 |
|     |            |                                 | linguistics, and the acquisition of the four       |
|     |            |                                 | skills: reading, listening, writing, and speaking. |
|     |            |                                 | Also, learn contemporary French and                |
| ELE | FREN.200   | French II                       | Francophone institutions and mores,                |
|     |            |                                 | communicate and interact with other speakers       |
|     |            |                                 | of French in diverse situations and in             |
|     |            |                                 | conversations involving everyday topics,           |
|     |            |                                 | develop listening skills and understand the gist   |
|     |            |                                 | of a variety of communication modes (i.e.,         |
|     |            |                                 | television, video, radio, etcetera); read a broad  |
|     |            |                                 | range of printed materials for general, specific   |

|     |          | T                   |  |
|-----|----------|---------------------|--|
|     |          |                     | and practical information; write notes, letters                                    |
|     |          |                     | and compositions on familiar topics with a good command of vocabulary and sentence |
|     |          |                     | structure in a cohesive and organized manner.                                      |
|     |          |                     | This course introduces students to the standard                                    |
|     |          |                     |  |
|     |          |                     | Mandarin Chinese language and is designed  |
|     |          |                     | for students with no or minimal previous   |
|     |          |                     | background in spoken or written Mandarin.  |
|     |          |                     | Scholars will focus on learning essential  |
|     |          |                     | vocabulary, practicing pronunciation, and  |
|     |          |                     | understanding simple grammatical structures.                                       |
|     |          |                     | This knowledge prepares them to effectively  |
|     |          |                     | communicate in Mandarin on a limited range   |
|     |          |                     | of topics related to everyday situations.  |
|     |          |                     | Students practice listening and speaking in  |
| ELE | MCHI.100 | Mandarin Chinese I  | real-life situations, learn to read and write                                      |
|     |          |                     | Chinese characters, and examine how culture  |
|     |          |                     | and language interact in China, develop the  |
|     |          |                     | oral proficiency and confidence necessary to                                       |
|     |          |                     | initiate simple conversations. Field experiences                                   |
|     |          |                     | such as field trips and guided interactions with                                   |
|     |          |                     | native speakers supplement formal classroom  |
|     |          |                     | instruction and provide ample opportunities for                                    |
|     |          |                     | practical engagement. In addition, language  |
|     |          |                     | skills gained in this course support students to                                   |
|     |          |                     | deepen participation in other programs and   |
|     |          |                     | academic activities and conduct an   |
|     |          |                     | independent study project.   |
|     |          |                     | This more advanced course will further   |
|     |          |                     | introduce scholars to the standard Mandarin  |
|     |          |                     | Chinese language and is designed for students                                      |
|     |          |                     | with prerequisite background of Mandarin   |
|     |          |                     | Chinese I in the spoken or written language.                                       |
|     |          |                     | Scholars will focus on learning essential  |
|     |          |                     | vocabulary, practicing pronunciation, and  |
|     |          |                     | understanding simple grammatical structures.                                       |
| ELE | MCHI.200 | Mandarin Chinese II | This knowledge prepares them to effectively  |
|     |          |                     | communicate in Mandarin on a broader range   |
|     |          |                     | of topics related to everyday situations.  |
|     |          |                     | Students practice listening and speaking in  |
|     |          |                     | real-life situations, learn to read and write                                      |
|     |          |                     | Chinese characters, and examine how culture  |
|     |          |                     | and language interact in China, develop the  |
|     |          |                     | oral proficiency and confidence necessary to                                       |
|     |          |                     | initiate conversations. Field experiences such                                     |
|     |          |                     | as field trips and guided interactions with  |
|     |          |                     | native speakers supplement formal classroom  |

|     |          | T                               |  |
|-----|----------|---------------------------------|--|
|     |          |                                 | instruction and provide ample opportunities for practical engagement. In addition, language skills gained in this course support students to deepen participation in other programs and academic activities and conduct an   |
|     |          |                                 | independent study project.   |
| ELE | MUAP.100 | Music And Art Appreciation      | Students will recognize the development of music from a historical and cultural perspective; study the fundamentals of music and discover basic music terminology, instrument families, tempo, rhythm, form and meter; examine the elements that will then be used throughout the course as a foundation for discussion of music throughout history; investigate a variety of eras and genres.  Students will gain an understanding of the context in which music was created by recognizing and aurally identifying style characteristics, genres, and representative masterworks.  In addition, coverage of artistic movements will highlight a historical context and introduce students to key artists that represent a variety of geographic locations, as well as apply what they have learned about art critique to analyze and evaluate both individual artists and individual works of art. |
| ELE | PEWE.100 | Physical Education And Wellness | Students enrolled in this course shall develop goals of physical education and wellness to become a physically literate individual who have the knowledge, skills and confidence to enjoy a lifetime of healthy physical activity.  And, learn the implications and the benefits of involvement in various types of physical activities; participates regularly in physical activity, obtain a level of physical fitness; values physical activity and its contributions to a healthful lifestyle; demonstrate competency in a variety of motor skills and movement patterns; receive knowledge of concepts, principles, strategies and tactics related to movement and performance, and exhibit responsible personal and social behavior that respects self and others; and recognize the value of physical activity for health, enjoyment, challenge, self-expression and social interaction.      |

| ELE | SPAN.100 | Spanish I  | This beginner courses offers students an introduction to basic communicative skills in Spanish while developing an awareness and appreciation of Hispanic or Latino cultures. It is designed for students with no or minimal previous background in spoken or written Spanish. Scholars will focus on learning essential vocabulary, practicing pronunciation, and understanding simple grammatical structures. This knowledge prepares them to effectively communicate in Spanish on a limited range of topics related to everyday situations. Students practice listening and speaking in real-life situations, learn to read and write Spanish characters, and examine how culture and language interact in Latin nations, develop the oral proficiency and confidence necessary to initiate simple conversations. Field experiences such as field trips and guided interactions with native speakers supplement formal classroom instruction and provide ample opportunities for practical engagement. In addition, language skills gained in this course support students to deepen participation in other programs and |
|-----|----------|------------|--|
| ELE | SPAN.200 | Spanish II | academic activities and conduct an independent study project.  This more advanced course will offer students an introduction to basic communicative skills in Spanish while developing an awareness and appreciation of Hispanic or Latino cultures. It is designed for students with prerequisite background of Spanish I in the spoken or written language. Scholars will focus on learning essential vocabulary, practicing pronunciation, and understanding simple grammatical structures. This knowledge prepares them to effectively communicate in Spanish on a broader range of topics related to everyday situations. Students practice listening and speaking in real-life situations, learn to read and write Spanish characters, and examine how culture and language interact in Latin nations, develop the oral proficiency and confidence necessary to initiate conversations. Field experiences such as field trips and guided interactions with native speakers supplement  |

|  | formal classroom instruction and provide        |
|--|---|
|  | ample opportunities for practical engagement.   |
|  | In addition, language skills gained in this     |
|  | course support students to deepen participation |
|  | in other programs and academic activities and   |
|  | conduct an independent study project.           |

English Language Arts

| English Language Arts |               |   |   |
|-----------------------|---------------|---|---|
| Subject               | Course Number | <b>Course Title</b>                                 | <b>Course Description</b>   |
| ENG                   | ADLI.1200     | Advanced Literature And<br>Composition              | This course greater exposes students to the elements of language and writing through engaging literature and practical writing exercises. Scholars will explore various genres, develop their vocabulary, enhance their understanding of sentence structure, and hone their writing skills, and be equipped with the knowledge and tools to effectively communicate ideas through written expression; as well as literary foundations, dialogue and debate such topics from a number of sources and genres.   |
| ENG                   | AAAL.110      | African And African American<br>Literature (Fall)   | The first (1st) semester of the course will present arguments and ideas that emerge on African and African American literary foundations, dialogue and debate such topics from a number of sources and genres.  Students will identify and investigate the content from the early days of enslavement to the present. They will read, analyze, and discuss literary texts written by Africans and African Americans, paying particular attention to the political, historical, economic, legal, theoretical, and social context that informs these texts. |
| ENG                   | AAAL.120      | African And African American<br>Literature (Spring) | The second (2 <sup>nd</sup> ) semester of the course will present arguments and ideas that emerge on African and African American literary foundations, dialogue and debate such topics from a number of sources and genres.  Students will identify and investigate the content from the early days of enslavement to the present. They will read, analyze, and discuss literary texts written by Africans and African Americans, paying particular attention to the political, historical, economic, legal,   |

|     |           |  | theoretical, and social context that informs these texts.   |
|-----|-----------|--|---|
| ENG | ALIT.1110 | American Literature (Fall)               | The first (1st) semester of this course introduces students to American literature by surveying a wide range of texts—some very famous and lesser-known writers and authors, written by and about people living in the present-day United States. The course will trace political, intellectual, and social developments as they interacted with literary culture. Students will both acquire knowledge of American cultural history and develop skills of literary analysis.               |
| ENG | ALIT.1120 | American Literature (Spring)             | The second (2 <sup>nd</sup> ) semester of this course introduces students to American literature by surveying a wide range of texts—some very famous and lesser-known writers and authors, written by and about people living in the present-day United States. The course will trace political, intellectual, and social developments as they interacted with literary culture. Students will both acquire knowledge of American cultural history and develop skills of literary analysis. |
| ENG | AWLI.810  | Ancient And World Literature (Fall)      | The first (1st) semester of this yearlong course traces the development of literary genres, language, and writing and leaps through time travel from varying cities, empires, and nations from antiquity. It is layered with narratives that relate to multiple generations, express oral history, epics, poetry, and non-fiction.  |
| ENG | AWLI.820  | Ancient And World Literature<br>(Spring) | The second (2 <sup>nd</sup> ) semester of this yearlong course traces the development of literary genres, language, and writing and leaps through time travel from varying cities, empires, and nations from antiquity. It is layered with narratives that relate to multiple generations, express oral history, epics, poetry, and non-fiction.  |
| ENG | COVO.1200 | Contemporary Vocabulary                  | Scholars shall practice and expand their vocabulary and improve their comprehension and reading fluency. There will be several opportunities to learn the terminology by completing exercises on definitions, context clues, word parts, origins, and etcetera.   |
| ENG | GLIT.710  | General Literacy (Fall)                  | During the first (1 <sup>st</sup> ) semester, scholars will form an understanding of language and the   |

|     |           |                                     | literacy process as it applies reading and writing. The course emphasizes ways that reading, writing, speaking, and listening are developed and used in learning multiple disciplines.  During the second (2 <sup>nd</sup> ) semester, scholars will   |
|-----|-----------|-------------------------------------|--|
| ENG | GLIT.720  | General Literacy (Spring)           | form an understanding of language and the literacy process as it applies reading and writing. The course emphasizes ways that reading, writing, speaking, and listening are developed and used in learning multiple disciplines.   |
| ENG | GRCO.910  | Grammar And Composition (Fall)      | The first (1 <sup>st</sup> ) year and first (1 <sup>st</sup> ) semester of the course introduces students to the fundamental elements of language and writing through engaging literature and practical writing exercises. Scholars will explore various genres, develop their vocabulary, enhance their understanding of sentence structure, and hone their writing skills, and be equipped with the knowledge and tools to effectively communicate ideas through written expression. |
| ENG | GRCO.920  | Grammar And Composition<br>(Spring) | The first (1st) year and second (2nd) semester of the course introduces students to the fundamental elements of language and writing through engaging literature and practical writing exercises. Scholars will explore various genres, develop their vocabulary, enhance their understanding of sentence structure, and hone their writing skills, and be equipped with the knowledge and tools to effectively communicate ideas through written expression.                          |
| ENG | GRCO.1010 | Grammar And Composition (Fall)      | This second (2 <sup>nd</sup> ) year and first (1 <sup>st</sup> ) semester course further exposes students to the elements of language and writing through engaging literature and practical writing exercises. Scholars will explore various genres, develop their vocabulary, enhance their understanding of sentence structure, and hone their writing skills, and be equipped with the knowledge and tools to effectively communicate ideas through written expression.             |
| ENG | GRCP.1020 | Grammar And Composition<br>(Spring) | This second (2 <sup>nd</sup> ) year and second (2 <sup>nd</sup> ) semester course further exposes students to the elements of language and writing through engaging literature and practical writing   |

|     |          |                     | develop their vocabulary, enhance their understanding of sentence structure, and hone their writing skills, and be equipped with the knowledge and tools to effectively communicate ideas through written expression.  Students are to develop into an inherently powerful public speaker. This skills-based course covers the fundamentals and in-depth   |
|-----|----------|---------------------|--|
| ENG | ORCO.100 | Oral Communications | skills of informative and persuasive presentation development and delivery; as well as being designed to assess both cognitive concepts, theories and behavioral skills, and learning outcomes associated with communication. Topics will include but are not limited to voice, diction, projection, gestures, body language. And discuss and practice speaking with visuals, argument, oral interpretation, impromptu speaking, negotiation, and discussion; and the ethics of communication and the analysis of both effective and poor communication. |

#### **Mathematics**

| Subject | Course Number | Course Title              | <b>Course Description</b>   |
|---------|---------------|---------------------------|---|
| МАТН    | AALG.1010     | Advanced Algebra (Fall)   | The first (1 <sup>st</sup> ) semester of this course is designed to guide students in understanding patterns, relations, and functions; to represent and analyze mathematical situations and structures using algebraic symbols, using mathematical models to represent and understand quantitative relationships; and analyze change in various contexts.  |
| МАТН    | AALG.1020     | Advanced Algebra (Spring) | The second (2 <sup>nd</sup> ) semester of this course is designed to guide students in understanding patterns, relations, and functions; to represent and analyze mathematical situations and structures using algebraic symbols, using mathematical models to represent and understand quantitative relationships; and analyze change in various contexts. |
| МАТН    | ALGE.910      | Algebra I (Fall)          | The first (1st) semester of this course introduces students to variables, algebraic expressions, equations, inequalities, functions, and all their multiple representations. Scholars will develop the ability to explore and solve   |

|      |           |                          | real-world application problems, demonstrate the appropriate use of graphing calculators, and communicate mathematical ideas clearly, as well as lays the foundation for mathematical literacy that will help them be successful in  |
|------|-----------|--------------------------|--|
| МАТН | ALGE.920  | Algebra I (Spring)       | every subsequent course in mathematics.  The second (2 <sup>nd</sup> ) semester of this course introduces students to variables, algebraic expressions, equations, inequalities, functions, and all their multiple representations. Scholars will develop the ability to explore and solve real-world application problems, demonstrate the appropriate use of graphing calculators, and communicate mathematical ideas clearly, as well as lays the foundation for mathematical literacy that will help them be successful in |
| МАТН | CALC.1200 | Calculus                 | every subsequent course in mathematics.  The course address content of the Fundamental Theorem of Calculus basic analytic geometry of graphs of functions, and the properties of functions, including limits, continuity, derivatives, integration, integral, applications of the integral, like arc length and volumes of solids with rotational symmetry and highlight areas where the applications to the biological, physical, and social sciences, and engineering.   |
| МАТН | GEMA.710  | Integrated Mathematics I | The first (1st) semester of this yearlong course introduces fundamental mathematical concepts; whole numbers, operations on whole numbers, fractions, decimals, ratios, rates, and proportions. The focus is on learning computational procedures and then applying the skills to problem-solving in applications, and set the stage for the study of percents, measurement conversions, finding dimensions in geometry, computing statistics, and solving algebraic equations.  |
| МАТН | GEMA.720  | Integrated Mathematics I | The second (2 <sup>nd</sup> ) semester of this yearlong course continues to introduce fundamental mathematical concepts; whole numbers, operations on whole numbers, fractions, decimals, ratios, rates, and proportions. The focus is on learning computational procedures and then applying the skills to problem-solving in applications, and set the stage for the study of percents, measurement conversions, finding   |

|           |                           | dimensions in geometry, computing statistics,   |
|-----------|---------------------------|---|
|           |                           | and solving algebraic equations.  |
| GEMA.810  | Integrated Mathematics II | In the first (1 <sup>st</sup> ) semester of the course, scholars will attain knowledge and mastery of how multiplication gives rise to exponents and how to represent, interpret, and compute exponents from problem situations, represent practical situations using algebraic and fractional expressions, and verbally interpret graphs of functions, know basic concepts of probability theory. This course covers conceptual and practical notions of exponents and radicals; algebraic and rational functions, algebraic equations and inequalities, systems of linear equations, polynomial, exponential, and logarithmic functions.  |
| GEMA.820  | Integrated Mathematics II | In the second (2 <sup>nd</sup> ) semester of the course, scholars will continue to attain knowledge and mastery of how multiplication gives rise to exponents and how to represent, interpret, and compute exponents from problem situations, represent practical situations using algebraic and fractional expressions, and verbally interpret graphs of functions, know basic concepts of probability theory. This course covers conceptual and practical notions of exponents and radicals; algebraic and rational functions, algebraic equations and inequalities, systems of linear equations, polynomial, exponential, and logarithmic functions.   |
| GEOM.1110 | Geometry (Fall)           | Students will acquire and demonstrate knowledge of concepts, definitions, properties, and applications of the topics listed above as well as develop the computational skills and strategies needed to solve problems. Students will develop critical thinking and decision making skills by connecting concepts to practical applications in the language of geometry (points, lines, planes and angles), reasoning and proofs (paragraph, two column, flow, indirect, and coordinate), parallel and perpendicular lines, congruent triangles, applications of congruent triangles, quadrilaterals, similarity, right triangles and trigonometry, circles, polygons and area, surface area and volume, coordinate geometry, and transformations. |
|           | GEMA.820                  | GEMA.820 Integrated Mathematics II  |

| МАТН | GEOM.1120 | Geometry (Spring)                           | Students will continue to acquire and demonstrate knowledge of concepts, definitions, properties, and applications of the topics listed above as well as develop the computational skills and strategies needed to solve problems. Students will develop critical thinking and decision making skills by connecting concepts to practical applications in the language of geometry (points, lines, planes and angles), reasoning and proofs (paragraph, two column, flow, indirect, and coordinate), parallel and perpendicular lines, congruent triangles, applications of congruent triangles, quadrilaterals, similarity, right triangles and trigonometry, circles, polygons and area, surface area and volume, coordinate geometry, and transformations. |
|------|-----------|---|---|
| МАТН | MRDM.1200 | Mathematic Reasoning For<br>Decision Making | The course content helps the learner cultivate a strong sense of working with figures and shapes of all forms and expands ideas around mathematics into real life problems. A cultivation of strong spatial reasoning skills are taught as students explore different properties of shapes and figures including congruence, area, perimeter, volume, surface area, and similarity. These new ideas provide learners a place to continually apply their accumulated mathematical reasoning, knowledge, and skills.  |
| МАТН | PRST.1200 | Probability And Statistics                  | This course provides an elementary introduction to probability and statistics with applications. Its topics include basic combinatorics, random variables, probability distributions and theory, Bayesian and frequentist inference, hypothesis testing, confidence intervals, linear regression, the use software and simulation to do statistics (R), and guidance for scholars to become an informed consumer of statistical information.  |
| МАТН | TRIG.1200 | Trigonometry                                | The semester course shall address topics such as the unit circle, trigonometric functions (definitions, graphs, and inverses), right triangles, oblique triangles, trigonometric identities, trigonometric equations, the trigonometric form of complex numbers, two-dimensional vectors, polar coordinates, and parametric equations. Usage of the scientific calculator is required.  |

# Natural Sciences

| Subject | Course Number | Course Title           | Course Description   |
|---------|---------------|------------------------|--|
| SCI     | ANPH.1110     | Anatomy And Physiology | The first (1st) semester of the yearlong course explores the anatomical structure and physiological processes of the human body. Scholars learn about anatomy and physiology from both microscopic (atoms and cells) and macroscopic (organ functionality and bodily systems) perspectives; and explore the following body systems: endocrine, immune, cardiovascular, lymphatic, respiratory, digestive, urinary, and reproductive; as well as the concept of homeostasis and the underlying principles common to all systems are applied from the sub-molecular to the organismal level for each system.                           |
| SCI     | ANPH.1120     | Anatomy And Physiology | The second (2 <sup>nd</sup> ) semester of the yearlong course continues to explore the anatomical structure and physiological processes of the human body. Scholars learn about anatomy and physiology from both microscopic (atoms and cells) and macroscopic (organ functionality and bodily systems) perspectives; and explore the following body systems: endocrine, immune, cardiovascular, lymphatic, respiratory, digestive, urinary, and reproductive; as well as the concept of homeostasis and the underlying principles common to all systems are applied from the sub-molecular to the organismal level for each system. |
| SCI     | BIO.910       | Biological Science     | This course educates learners on how living systems work, from cells and genetics to ecosystems and evolution, through scientific observation, analysis, reporting, and hands-on research experiences.   |
| SCI     | BIO.920       | Biological Science     | This course continues to educate learners on how living systems work, from cells and genetics to ecosystems and evolution, through scientific observation, analysis, reporting, and hands-on research experiences.   |
| SCI     | CHEM.1010     | Chemistry              | The first (1st) semester of the yearlong course explore the basic principles and methods of chemistry, such as the metric system, scientific notation and significant figures, atomic structure and theories, trends of the periodic table of the elements, bonding, molecular   |

|      |             |                           | 1 1 10 1   |
|------|-------------|---------------------------|--|
|      |             |                           | geometry, chemical formulas, stoichiometry,            |
|      |             |                           | gas laws, thermochemistry, and                         |
|      |             |                           | thermodynamics, the nature of matter,                  |
|      |             |                           | stoichiometry, basic chemical reactions and            |
|      |             |                           | bonding, atomic structure and the periodic             |
|      |             |                           | table.   |
|      |             |                           | The second (2 <sup>nd</sup> ) semester of the yearlong |
|      |             |                           | course explore the basic principles and                |
|      |             |                           | methods of chemistry, such as the metric               |
|      |             |                           | system, scientific notation and significant            |
|      |             |                           |  |
| CCI  | CHEM 1020   | C1                        | figures, atomic structure and theories, trends of      |
| SCI  | CHEM.1020   | Chemistry                 | the periodic table of the elements, bonding,           |
|      |             |                           | molecular geometry, chemical formulas,                 |
|      |             |                           | stoichiometry, gas laws, thermochemistry, and          |
|      |             |                           | thermodynamics, the nature of matter,                  |
|      |             |                           | stoichiometry, basic chemical reactions and            |
|      |             |                           | bonding, atomic structure and the periodic             |
|      |             |                           | table.   |
|      |             |                           | The yearlong course is designed to teach               |
|      |             |                           | computer applications to include: word                 |
| SCI  | CSAP.1210   | Computer Science And      | processing, electronic spreadsheet, database           |
| 201  | 0011111210  | Applications              | management, presentation design, electronic            |
|      |             | rippiieutions             | communications, and website and application            |
|      |             |                           | development.   |
|      |             |                           | During the second (2 <sup>nd</sup> ) semester of the   |
|      |             |                           |  |
|      |             |                           | yearlong course is designed to have increased          |
| G G* | GG + D 1000 |                           | depth to teach computer applications to                |
| SCI  | CSAP.1220   | Computer Science And      | include: word processing, electronic                   |
|      |             | Applications              | spreadsheet, database management,                      |
|      |             |                           | presentation design, electronic                        |
|      |             |                           | communications, website and application                |
|      |             |                           | development, and the fundamentals of artificial        |
|      |             |                           | intelligence.  |
|      |             |                           | This course studies impacts the way humans             |
|      |             |                           | and animals coexist, live, eat, and breathe,           |
|      |             |                           | making the earth an intrinsic part of their            |
|      |             |                           | shared humanity. Scholars deeply explore               |
| SCI  | ECOE.810    | Ecology And Environmental | ecology and environmental science through the          |
| 501  | LCOL.010    | Science                   | lens of policy, management, and sustainability,        |
|      |             | Science                   |  |
|      |             |                           | how organisms interact with each other and             |
|      |             |                           | their environment at the population,                   |
|      |             |                           | community, and ecosystem levels, and                   |
|      |             |                           | enriched by learning by real-world                     |
|      |             |                           | experiences.   |
| SCI  | ECOE.820    | Ecology And Environmental | This course continues to study the impact the          |
|      |             | Science                   | way humans and animals coexist, live, eat, and         |
|      |             |                           | breathe, making the earth an intrinsic part of         |
| !    | 1           | I                         |  |

|     |          |                                | their shared humanity. Scholars deeply explore ecology and environmental science through the lens of policy, management, and sustainability, how organisms interact with each other and their environment at the population, community, and ecosystem levels, enriched by learning by real-world experiences, and culminates with a project.  |
|-----|----------|--------------------------------|---|
| SCI | GESC.710 | Integrated Science (Fall)      | This course places emphasis on student- centered learning experience and field activities, so that they acquire scientific knowledge, and develop problem-solving and decision-making skills, a postive attitude to the natural environment; matter, elements, compounds, cell, living things and their diversity, earth in space, motion, force energy and energy resource, develop basic manipulative skills related to science laboratory.   |
| SCI | GESC.720 | Integrated Science (Spring)    | This course continues to place emphasis on student-centered learning experience and field activities, so that they acquire scientific knowledge, and develop problem-solving and decision-making skills, a postive attitude to the natural environment; matter, elements, compounds, cell, living things and their diversity, earth in space, motion, force energy and energy resource, develop basic manipulative skills related to science laboratory.  |
| SCI | IHSC.100 | Introduction To Health Science | This course is an interdisciplinary approach to the health sciences. Scholars will learn fundamental medical terminology, prepare the pursuit of careers in the fields of biotechnology research, therapeutics, health informatics, diagnostics, and support services, compare and contrast the features of healthcare systems, explain the legal and ethical ramifications of the healthcare setting, and begin to perform foundational healthcare skills. The course will include an internship with a healthcare professional. |
|     |          |                                | The first (1 <sup>st</sup> ) semester of a yearlong course will provide learners with an enjoyable and worthwhile educational experience with the aim to pique the desire to study science beyond this class. It will enable learners to acquire  |

| SCI | PHSC.1010 | Physics And Physical Science | sufficient knowledge and understanding to become confident citizens in a technological world and develop an informed interest in scientific matters; be suitably prepared for scientific studies; the evidence-based and understand the usefulness, and the limitations, of the scientific method. Scholars will create skills that are relevant to the study and practice of science, are useful in everyday life, encourage a systematic approach to problemsolving, encourage efficient and safe practice, and encourage effective communication   |
|-----|-----------|------------------------------|---|
| SCI | PHSC.1020 | Physics And Physical Science | through the language of science.  The second (2 <sup>nd</sup> ) semester of a yearlong course will provide learners with an enjoyable and worthwhile educational experience with the aim to pique the desire to study science beyond this class. It will enable learners to acquire sufficient knowledge and understanding to become confident citizens in a technological world and develop an informed interest in scientific matters; be suitably prepared for scientific studies; the evidence-based and understand the usefulness, and the limitations, of the scientific method. Scholars will create skills that are relevant to the study and practice of science, are useful in everyday life, encourage a systematic approach to problem-solving, encourage efficient and safe practice, and encourage effective communication through the language of science. |

# Social Studies

| Subject | <b>Course Number</b> | Course Title             | Course Description   |
|---------|----------------------|--------------------------|--|
| SOST    | AAHI.110             | African American History | This first (1st) semester of a yearlong course seeks to give an account of past and contemporary events relating to people of African descent. It examines the contributions African Americans have made to the history of the United States. This course is designed to assist students in understanding issues and events from multiple perspectives. It develops an understanding of the historical roots of African American culture, especially as it pertains to social, economic, legal, theoretical, and political interactions within the broader |

|      | T         | T                              |  |
|------|-----------|--------------------------------|--|
|      |           |                                | context of United States history. It requires an analysis of important ideas, social and cultural values, beliefs, and traditions. Knowledge of past achievements provides citizens of the 21 <sup>st</sup> century with a broader context within which to address the many issues facing the United States and globally.  |
| SOST | AAHI.120  | African American History       | This second (2 <sup>nd</sup> ) semester of a yearlong course seeks to give an account of past and contemporary events relating to people of African descent. It examines the contributions African Americans have made to the history of the United States. This course is designed to assist students in understanding issues and events from multiple perspectives. It develops an understanding of the historical roots of African American culture, especially as it pertains to social, economic, legal, theoretical, and political interactions within the broader context of United States history. It requires an analysis of important ideas, social and cultural values, beliefs, and traditions. Knowledge of past achievements provides citizens of the 21 <sup>st</sup> century with a broader context within which to address the many issues facing the United States and globally. |
| SOST | ECPF.1100 | Economics And Personal Finance | The semester-long course provides students with a thorough foundation in the field of economics. It emphasizes macroeconomy and microeconomy and personal finance decision making. Students will explore the interrelationships among consumers, producers, and resources as well as the interrelationships between national and global economies. Additionally, scholars will examine the relationship between individual choices and the direct influence of these choices on career and future earning potential.   |
| SOST | GSS.710   | Integrated Social Studies I    | In this yearlong course, scholars will attain a fundamental knowledge of civics, economics, geography, history, archeology, and anthropology; as well as their connection to current events.   |
| SOST | GSS.720   | Integrated Social Studies I    | In this yearlong course, scholars will continue to attain a fundamental knowledge of civics, economics, geography, history, archeology, and  |

|      |           |                              | anthropology; as well as their connection to current events.  |
|------|-----------|------------------------------|---|
| SOST | GSS.810   | Integrated Social Studies II | In this yearlong course, scholars will attain a fundamental knowledge of civics, economics, geography, government, history, archeology, and anthropology; as well as their connection to current events.  |
| SOST | GSS.820   | Integrated Social Studies II | In the second (2 <sup>nd</sup> ) semester of the course, scholars will demonstrate their intellectual power to recognize societal problems; ask good questions and develop robust investigations into them; consider possible solutions and consequences; and construct evidence-based claims. A culminating project will be required.  |
| SOST | GOPS.1100 | Government/Political Science | The government and political science course are an integrated study of the foundation, institutions, policies, and processes of the American political system. The course is a semester of study that is grounded in the citizenship experiences, and promotion of the democratic values of our republic. United States government provides a coordinated study of a discipline of political science.  Scholars will investigate the function, governance, structure and challenges of each level of government, as well as the state and national constitutions, and local charters.  In addition, the course seeks to give an account of past and contemporary events relating to the government. Key concepts and events will be taught and discussed in a thematic, relevant, and systematic order. |
| SOST | PSYC.100  | Psychology                   | This course is designed to introduce scholars to the scientific study of human nature. You will learn how to ask and theorize psychological questions from several different perspectives: the relation of brain and behavior, about perception, about learning and thinking, about development, about social behavior and personality, and about psychopathology and psychotherapy, methods uses to find the answers; as well as critical thinking about psychological evidence, and to evaluate the validity and its relevance to important issues in human life.   |

|      | 1        |                       |   |
|------|----------|-----------------------|---|
| SOST | SOCI.100 | Sociology             | Students will explore the ways sociologists view society and how they study the social world. They will examine culture, socialization, deviance, and the structure and impact of institutions and organizations as well as selected social problems and how change impacts individuals and societies. The course reflects the standards recommended by the American Sociological Association (ASA). In addition, the course seeks to give an account of past and contemporary events relating to sociology. Key concepts and events will be taught and discussed in a thematic, relevant, and systematic order.  |
| SOST | USH.1010 | United States History | The first (1st) semester of the yearlong course of study begins with an intensive review of the major ideas, issues, and events that shaped the founding of the nation. In their study of this era, students will view American history through the lens of people who were trying—and are still trying—to fulfill the promise of the Declaration of Independence and the Constitution. Throughout their eighth-grade United States history and geography course, students will confront the themes of freedom, equality, and liberty and their changing definitions over time. This course will explore the geography of place, movement, and region, starting with the Atlantic seaboard and then American westward expansion and economic development, the Civil War and Reconstruction, and finally, industrialization.  Covering parts of four (4) centuries, the historical content outlined is both substantial and substantive and in-depth study. Students will learn American history from the 17th century to present-day by developing reading, writing, speaking, and listening skills that will enhance their understanding of the content as an investigative discipline, one that is continually reshaped based on primary-source research and on new perspectives that can be uncovered. |

| SOST | USH.1020 | United States History        | The second (2 <sup>nd</sup> ) semester of the yearlong course of study begins with an intensive review of the major ideas, issues, and events that shaped the founding of the nation. In their study of this era, students will view American history through the lens of people who were trying—and are still trying—to fulfill the promise of the Declaration of Independence and the Constitution. Throughout their eighthgrade United States history and geography course, students will confront the themes of freedom, equality, and liberty and their changing definitions over time. This course will explore the geography of place, movement, and region, starting with the Atlantic seaboard and then American westward expansion and economic development, the Civil War and Reconstruction, and finally, industrialization.  Covering parts of four (4) centuries, the historical content outlined is both substantial and substantive and in-depth study. Students will learn American history from the 17 <sup>th</sup> century to present-day by developing reading, writing, speaking, and listening skills that will enhance their understanding of the content as an investigative discipline, one that is continually reshaped based on primary-source research and on new perspectives that can be uncovered. |
|------|----------|------------------------------|--|
| SOST | WMH.100  | Women's And Minority History | This course will expand understand of the stories of women and minorities in several periods of national and world history; as well as the emergence of modern feminist thought. Scholars gain a comprehensive study of both groups including political and social economies through the use of importance of primary and secondary sources.   |
| SOST | WGHI.910 | World Geography And History  | The first (1 <sup>st</sup> ) semester of yearlong course will give provide students with opportunities to study the rise and fall of empires, the diffusion of religions and languages, and significant movements of people, ideas, and products.  During these periods, the regions of the world became more and more interconnected.  Although societies were quite distinct from each other, there were more exchanges of   |

|      |          |                             | people, products, and ideas in each century.  The course will study a catalog of names, places, and events that impacted individual societies, while the larger patterns that affected the world.   |
|------|----------|-----------------------------|---|
| SOST | WGHI.920 | World Geography And History | The second (2 <sup>nd</sup> ) semester of yearlong course will give provide students with opportunities to study the rise and fall of empires, the diffusion of religions and languages, and significant movements of people, ideas, and products.  During these periods, the regions of the world became more and more interconnected.  Although societies were quite distinct from each other, there were more exchanges of people, products, and ideas in each century.  The course will study a catalog of names, places, and events that impacted individual societies, while the larger patterns that affected the world. |

## **Official Transcript Request**

Students, parent(s) or guardian(s) may make official transcript requests via DreamClass and my emailing their guidance counselor.

## **Student Daily Schedules**

| <b>Grade Level</b>           | 1st Period                  | 2 <sup>nd</sup> Period      | 3 <sup>rd</sup> Period      | 4th Period                  | 5 <sup>th</sup> Period      | 6th Period                  |
|------------------------------|-----------------------------|-----------------------------|-----------------------------|-----------------------------|-----------------------------|-----------------------------|
|                              | (8-9am)                     | (9-10am)                    | (10-11am)                   | (11am-12pm)                 | (12:45-2pm)                 | (2-3pm)                     |
| Seventh (7 <sup>th</sup> )   | Mathematics                 | Science                     | Social Studies              | English<br>Language<br>Arts | Elective                    | Elective                    |
| Eighth (8th)                 | Science                     | Social Studies              | English<br>Language<br>Arts | Elective                    | Elective                    | Mathematics                 |
| Ninth (9 <sup>th</sup> )     | Social Studies              | English<br>Language<br>Arts | Elective                    | Elective                    | Mathematics                 | Science                     |
| Tenth (10 <sup>th</sup> )    | English<br>Language<br>Arts | Elective                    | Elective                    | Mathematics                 | Science                     | Social Studies              |
| Eleventh (11 <sup>th</sup> ) | Elective                    | Elective                    | Mathematics                 | Science                     | Social Studies              | English<br>Language<br>Arts |
| Twelfth (12 <sup>th</sup> )  | Elective                    | Mathematics                 | Science                     | Social Studies              | English<br>Language<br>Arts | Elective                    |

### **Daily And Weekly Activities**

Lunch: 12 noon-12:45pm (Daily) Read Alouds: 12:45-1pm (Daily)

Preparation Period: 7-8am (Mondays, Wednesdays, And Fridays)
Professional Learning Communities (PLC): 7-8am (Tuesdays And Thursdays)
Enrichment, Scheduled Conferences With Educators/Office Hours, Asynchronous Instruction:
3pm-8pm

Faculty And Staff Meetings: 7am On First Tuesday Of The Month Grade Level Meetings: 3pm On Thursdays

### **Inclement Weather Policy**

The following inclement weather policy will be enforced by the Hathaway Institute for administrators, faculty, staff and students in cases of severe or threatening weather, weather related or emergencies.

- 1. The decision to close the school or dismiss classes rests solely with the Founding Chancellor, or in case of one's absence, the School Principal shall act as the representative and make the decision.
- 2. Once the decision has been made public, this information is notified to the traditional media (television and radio stations), school social media and each outlet will post and announce the open, close, or late arrival status of the institution between 5:00AM and 7:00AM Central (the morning of the closure) or as soon as possible.

## The Hathaway Institute 2025-2026 Academic Year Calendar **Fall And Spring Semesters**

| (189 Contractual Workdays Total)           |   |  |  |  |
|--|---|--|--|--|
| Wednesday, July 30-Thursday, July 31       | Faculty And Staff Professional Development �            |  |  |  |
| Friday, August 22                          | Student Orientation                                     |  |  |  |
| Monday, August 25                          | First Day Of School                                     |  |  |  |
| Monday, August 4-Friday, August 15         | Census Data (Ten-Days)                                  |  |  |  |
| Monday, September 1                        | Labor Day/Federal Holiday ❖☀                            |  |  |  |
| Friday, September 26                       | Faculty And Staff Professional Development              |  |  |  |
| Wednesday, October 1                       | Final Census Report                                     |  |  |  |
| Wednesday, October 8                       | Parent, Guardian, Student, And Educator Conferences Day |  |  |  |
| Thursday, October 9-Friday, October 10     | Midterm Examinations                                    |  |  |  |
| Monday, October 13-Tuesday, October 14     | Indigenous Peoples' Day/Fall Break ❖☀                   |  |  |  |
| Tuesday, October 14                        | Marking Period One (M <sub>1</sub> ) Grades Deadline    |  |  |  |
| Wednesday, October 15                      | Progress Report Distribution And Accessibility          |  |  |  |
| Friday, October 17                         | Awards Ceremony   |  |  |  |
| Wednesday, November 26-Friday, November 28 | Thanksgiving Break ❖☀                                   |  |  |  |
| Thursday, December 18-Friday, December 19  | Final Examinations And                                  |  |  |  |
|  | Marking Period Two (M2) Grades Deadline                 |  |  |  |
|  | Semester Grades Deadline                                |  |  |  |
| Monday, December 22-Friday, January 2      | Winter Break ❖☀   |  |  |  |
| Tuesday, December 23                       | Semester Report Card Distribution And Accessibility     |  |  |  |
|  |   |  |  |  |
| Monday, January 5                          | Faculty And Staff Professional Development �            |  |  |  |
| Tuesday, January 6                         | Students Return/School Resumes                          |  |  |  |
| Friday, January 16                         | Awards Ceremony   |  |  |  |
| Monday, January 19                         | Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr. Day/Federal Holiday ❖☀      |  |  |  |
| Monday, February 16-Tuesday, February 17   | Mid-Winter Recess ❖ ★                                   |  |  |  |
| Wednesday, February 18                     | Faculty And Staff Professional Development �            |  |  |  |
| Wednesday, March 11                        | Parent, Guardian, Student, And Educator Conferences Day |  |  |  |
| Thursday, March 12-Friday, March 13        | Midterm Examinations                                    |  |  |  |
| Monday, March 16-Friday, March 20          | Spring Break ❖☀   |  |  |  |
| Tuesday, March 24                          | Marking Period Three (M <sub>3</sub> ) Grades Deadline  |  |  |  |
| Wednesday, March 25                        | Progress Report Distribution And Accessibility          |  |  |  |
| Friday, March 27                           | Awards Ceremony   |  |  |  |
| Monday, May 18-Tuesday, May 19             | Senior Final Examinations                               |  |  |  |
| Wednesday, May 20                          | Senior Grades Due                                       |  |  |  |
| Thursday, May 21-Friday, May 22            | Grades Seven-Eleven (7-11) Final Examinations           |  |  |  |
|  | Last Day Of School/Marking Period Four (M4) Grades      |  |  |  |
|  | Deadline  |  |  |  |
| G . 1 . 1/ . 22                            |   |  |  |  |

**★** -- No Faculty, Staff, Or Administration (All Offices Closed) **❖** -- No Students

Saturday, May 23

Monday, May 25

Tuesday, May 26-Monday, June 8

**Graduation Day** Final Report Card Distribution And Accessibility Memorial Day/Federal Holiday ❖☀

**Inclement Weather Or Illness Days (If Needed)** 

# Compensation And Benefits 2025-2026 Pay Scales

**Educators, Guidance Counselors, Librarians, And Technology Specialists** 

| Education     | Bachelors   | *Masters    | Specialist In Education | Doctorate    |
|---------------|-------------|-------------|-------------------------|--------------|
| Steps/Year(s) |             |             |                         |              |
| 0             | \$42,000.00 | \$48,000.00 | \$60,000.00             | \$65,000.00  |
| 1             | \$42,920.00 | \$49,050.00 | \$61,280.00             | \$66,400.00  |
| 2             | \$43,858.40 | \$50,122.05 | \$62,585.60             | \$67,828.00  |
| 3             | \$45,815.57 | \$51,216.61 | \$63,917.31             | \$69,284.56  |
| 4             | \$46,791.88 | \$52,334.16 | \$65,275.65             | \$70,770.25  |
| 5             | \$47,787.71 | \$53,475.18 | \$64,661.16             | \$72,285.65  |
| 6             | \$48,803.47 | \$54,640.16 | \$68,074.38             | \$73,831.36  |
| 7             | \$49,839.54 | \$55,829.60 | \$69,515.87             | \$75,407.99  |
| 8             | \$50,896.33 | \$57,044.03 | \$70,986.19             | \$77,016.15  |
| 9             | \$51,974.26 | \$58,283.95 | \$72,485.91             | \$78,656.47  |
| 10            | \$53,073.74 | \$59,549.92 | \$74,015.63             | \$80,329.60  |
| 11            | \$54,195.22 | \$60,842.47 | \$75,575.94             | \$82,036.20  |
| 12            | \$55,339.12 | \$62,162.16 | \$77,167.46             | \$83,776.92  |
| 13            | \$56,505.90 | \$63,509.57 | \$78,790.81             | \$85,552.46  |
| 14            | \$57,696.02 | \$64,885.27 | \$80,446.63             | \$87,363.51  |
| 15            | \$58,909.94 | \$66,289.86 | \$82,135.56             | \$89,210.78  |
| 16            | \$60,148.14 | \$67,723.95 | \$83,858.27             | \$91,095.00  |
| 17            | \$61,411.10 | \$69,188.15 | \$85,615.44             | \$93,016.90  |
| 18            | \$62,699.33 | \$70,683.10 | \$88,407.74             | \$94,977.23  |
| 19            | \$64,013.31 | \$72,209.45 | \$89,235.90             | \$96,976.78  |
| 20            | \$65,353.58 | \$73,767.85 | \$91,100.62             | \$99,016.31  |
| 21            | \$66,720.65 | \$75,358.97 | \$93,002.63             | \$101,096.64 |
| 22            | \$68,115.06 | \$76,983.50 | \$94,942.68             | \$103,218.57 |
| 23            | \$69,537.36 | \$78,642.16 | \$96,921.54             | \$105,382.94 |
| 24            | \$70,988.11 | \$80,335.65 | \$98,939.97             | \$107,590.60 |
| 25            | \$72,467.87 | \$82,064.70 | \$100,998.77            | \$109,842.42 |

### **Position Increments**

| Role                 | Percentage Increase |
|----------------------|---------------------|
| Assistant Principals | 22%                 |
| Principal            | 32%                 |
| Chancellor           | 45%                 |

<sup>\*</sup>Educators, guidance counselors, and media specialists above Step/Years 25 will receive the approved percentage agreed to during the budget process.

<sup>\*</sup>National Board Certification Additional \$2,500.00 Per Year For Five (5) Years

\*The salary schedule is revised annually. It is not possible to predict future salaries beyond the current academic year.

**Administrative Assistant And Support Staff** 

| Auministrative Assistant And Support Stan |             |  |
|---|-------------|--|
| Education                                 | Associates  |  |
| Steps/Year(s)                             |             |  |
| 0   | \$31,000.00 |  |
| 1   | \$31,620.00 |  |
| 2   | \$32,252.40 |  |
| 3   | \$32,897.44 |  |
| 4   | \$33,555.39 |  |
| 5   | \$34,226.50 |  |
| 6   | \$34,911.03 |  |
| 7   | \$35,609.25 |  |
| 8   | \$36,321.44 |  |
| 9   | \$37,047.86 |  |
| 10  | \$37,788.82 |  |
| 11  | \$38,544.60 |  |
| 12  | \$39,315.49 |  |
| 13  | \$40,101.80 |  |
| 14  | \$40,903.84 |  |
| 15  | \$41,721.91 |  |
| 16  | \$42,556.35 |  |
| 17  | \$43,407.48 |  |
| 18  | \$44,275.63 |  |
| 19  | \$45,161.14 |  |
| 20  | \$46,064.36 |  |
| 21  | \$46,985.65 |  |
| 22  | \$47,925.36 |  |
| 23  | \$48,883.87 |  |
| 24  | \$49,861.55 |  |
| 25  | \$50,858.78 |  |

Bachelor Degree Holders Receive Additional Salary Of \$3,000.00 Masters Degree Holders Receive Additional Salary Of \$6,000.00

## **Payroll Calendar** School Year 2025-2026

| Pay Period Start Date | Pay Period End Date | Pay Day            |
|-----------------------|---------------------|--------------------|
| July 30, 2025         | August 23, 2025     | August 29, 2025    |
| August 24, 2025       | September 6, 2025   | September 15, 2025 |
| September 7, 2025     | September 20, 2025  | September 30, 2025 |
| September 21, 2025    | October 4, 2025     | October 15, 2025   |
| October 5, 2025       | October 18, 2025    | October 31, 2025   |
| October 19, 2025      | November 1, 2025    | November 14, 2025  |
| November 2, 2025      | November 15, 2025   | November 28, 2025  |
| November 16, 2025     | November 29, 2025   | December 15, 2025  |
| November 30, 2025     | December 13, 2025   | December 31, 2025  |
| December 14, 2025     | December 27, 2025   | January 15, 2026   |
| December 28, 2025     | January 10, 2026    | January 30, 2026   |
| January 11, 2026      | January 24, 2026    | February 13, 2026  |
| January 25, 2026      | February 14, 2025   | February 27, 2026  |
| February 15, 2026     | February 28, 2026   | March 13, 2026     |
| March 1, 2026         | March 14, 2026      | March 31, 2026     |
| March 15, 2026        | March 28, 2026      | April 15, 2026     |
| March 29, 2026        | April 11, 2026      | April 30, 2026     |
| April 12, 2026        | April 25, 2026      | May 15, 2026       |
| April 26, 2026        | May 9, 2026         | May 29, 2026       |
| May 10, 2026          | May 23, 2026        | June 15, 2026      |
| May 24, 2026          | June 6, 2026        | June 30, 2026      |
| June 7, 2026          | June 20, 2026       | July 15, 2026      |
| June 21, 2026         | July 4, 2026        | July 31, 2026      |

#### References

| httns    | //northlittlero | ack school | spring com/ |
|----------|-----------------|------------|-------------|
| IIIIps./ |                 | JCK.SCHOOL | Spring.com/ |

https://dese.ade.arkansas.gov/Files/PLSB\_Allegation\_Form\_8\_2024\_EEF.pdf

https://dese.ade.arkansas.gov/Offices/educator-effectiveness/plsb-professional-

ethicsdiscipline/code-of-ethics-for-arkansas-educators

 $\frac{https://www.tn.gov/content/dam/tn/stateboardofeducation/documents/policies/5000/5.502\%20Ed}{ucator\%20Licensure\%20Policy\%207-27-18.pdf}$ 

 $\frac{https://pwsblobprd.schools.nyc/prd-pws/docs/default-source/default-document-library/discipline-code-grades-6-12.pdf?sfvrsn=c9d6a6f3\_8$ 

 $\frac{https://pwsblobprd.schools.nyc/prd-pws/docs/default-source/default-document-library/discipline-code-kindergarten-grade-5.pdf?sfvrsn=2e632999\_8$ 

https://www.tn.gov/content/dam/tn/tn-public-charter-school-commission/documents/rules-and-policies/lea-procedures/2023-

updates/2023 LEA Records%20Retention%20Schedule Current.pdf

https://www.cps.edu/services-and-supports/student-safety-and-security/cps-background-check-process/

https://www.cps.edu/about/protecting-chicagos-students/

https://www.cps.edu/about/non-discrimination-statement/

https://www.manhassetschools.org/board-policies/policy-details/~board/board-

policies/post/4750-promotion-and-retention-of-students

https://www.usd259.org/about-wps/board-of-education/boe-policies/boe-policy-details/~board/7-boe-policies/post/p1806-report-to-parents-on-student-progress

 $\frac{https://dcps.dc.gov/sites/default/files/dc/sites/dcps/publication/attachments/Graduation\%20Requirements\%20Policy~8.26.24.pdf$ 

https://www.bloomington.k12.mn.us/sites/default/files/2019-

 $\underline{11/Policy\%20513\%20Student\%20Promotion\%2C\%20Retention\%2C\%20and\%20Program\%20D}$ 

### esign.pdf

https://www.tn.gov/education/families/graduation-requirements.html

https://www.atlantapublicschools.us/Page/69253

https://www.atlantapublicschools.us/Page/73453

https://dph.illinois.gov/topics-services/prevention-wellness/immunization/minimum-

immunization-requirements.html

Graduation Requirements Policy 8.26.24.pdf

https://www.schools.nyc.gov/get-involved/students/student-bill-of-rights

https://infohub.nyced.org/docs/default-source/default-document-library/acpolicy-

highschoolacademicpolicyguide.pdf

https://infohub.nyced.org/in-our-schools/policies/academic-policy-guides https://cdnsm5-

ss13.sharpschool.com/UserFiles/Servers/Server\_32970243/File/Careers/Salary%20Schedules/20 23-24%20Schedules/Certificated%20Salary%20Schedule%20201%20Days.pdf

https://www.atlantapublicschools.us/cms/lib/GA01000924/Centricity/Domain/197/Revised%20T eacher FY24%20Revised%20SS.pdf

 $\frac{https://provost.yale.edu/sites/default/files/files/Yale\%20Faculty\%20Handbook\%20July\%201\%2}{C\%202023.pdf}$ 

https://www.faculty.umb.edu/wendy\_buckley/brlone/Syllabus%20VISN603\_Fa2019.pdf https://www.depts.ttu.edu/k12/support/pdf/ASL1A-Syllabus.pdf

| https://online.hbs.edu/Documents/so-you-want-to-be-an-   |
|--|
| entrepreneur.pdf? gl=1*91hbnd* gcl au*MTk2MDk3OTQwMy4xNzQ1NzAyNjQ1LjMyNDY                                  |
| xNjc4NS4xNzQ1NzAyNjgwLjE3NDU3MDI2Nzk.  |
| https://drexel.edu/~/media/Files/culturecomm/Syllabi/ML%20Syllabi/FREN101_French%20I.as                    |
| <u>hx</u>  |
| https://www.wheretherebedragons.com/wp-content/uploads/2018/08/CSA-China-Syllabi-                          |
| Summer.pdf   |
| https://www.imsa.edu/wp-content/uploads/2020/01/Music-Appreciation-2020-Syllabus.pdf                       |
| https://cdn.edmentum.com/alvs/uploads/2017/03/Art-Appreciation.pdf   |
| https://www.shapeamerica.org//Common/Uploaded%20files/uploads/pdfs/2017/Grade-Level-                       |
| Outcomes-for-K-12-Physical-Education.pdf   |
| https://www.depts.ttu.edu/k12/support/pdf/SPANISH1A-Syllabus.pdf   |
| https://cemoodle.online.lsu.edu/syllabus/SPAN_1101_v3.0_s2_Syllabus.pdf                                    |
| https://www.peekskillcsd.org/cms/lib/NY01913880/Centricity/Domain/826/Algebra%201%20D                      |
| ouble%20Syllabus.pdf   |
| http://57d7639f7b0e4cc2ed42-   |
| f740f463abd13b3d693aba3f67471d9e.r82.cf2.rackcdn.com/uploaded/a/0e1434113_algebra2.pdf                     |
| https://www.sahistory.org.za/sites/default/files/archive-  |
| files/kadiatu_kanneh_african_identities_race_nation_book4you.orgpdf  |
| https://aas267.commons.gc.cuny.edu/syllabus/   |
| https://www3.uwsp.edu/syllabus/syllabi/Comm%20101-syllabuswinter17.pdf                                     |
| https://writingprogram.emory.edu/documents/Oral%20communication%20syllabus                                 |
| revised%20for%20CC.pdf   |
| https://cehd.gmu.edu/assets/docs/syllabi/2015/syllabus_22168.pdf   |
| https://ummassadhomeschool.com/wp-content/uploads/2015/10/vocabulary-workbook-8.pdf                        |
| https://www.science.edu/acellus/course/grammar-and-composition-1/  |
| https://internet3.trincoll.edu/FacProfiles/Syllabi/11813083REG.pdf   |
| https://www.cambridgeinternational.org/Images/557012-2022-syllabus.pdf                                     |
| https://pll.harvard.edu/course/ancient-masterpieces-world-literature                                       |
| https://www.chem.pitt.edu/sites/default/files/syllabi-files/2019_2191_0110_TMadison.pdf                    |
| https://learn.saylor.org/mod/page/view.php?id=19756  |
| https://tl-cdn.pbseducation.org/courses/syllabi/sost1021-syllabus.pdf                                      |
| https://www.warren.edu/wp-content/uploads/2023/12/HIS-225-History-of-Women-in-America-                     |
| <u>11.2023.pdf</u>   |
| https://www.daytonastate.edu/academic-departments/college-of-arts-and-sciences/school-of-                  |
| mathematics/files/mac1114-college-trigonometry-course-syllabus.pdf   |
| https://mathematics.jhu.edu/undergraduate/course-descriptions/   |
| https://www.math.purdue.edu/academic/courses/Course-Description.html                                       |
| https://www.jmhs.com/pdfs/syllabus/general-mathematics-jmhs-syllabus.pdf                                   |
| https://shs.sharylandisd.org/faculty/garciajaviermath/geometry_syllabus                                    |
| https://www.excelhighschool.org/wp-content/uploads/2021/08/Geometry-Gale.pdf                               |
| https://ocw.mit.edu/courses/18-05-introduction-to-probability-and-statistics-spring-                       |
| 2022/pages/syllabus/   |
| https://www.mcphs.edu/academics/rdc-prereq-ap-   |
| one?utm_source=bing&utm_campaign=2025+Digital+Enrollment&utm_medium=cpc&utm_ter                            |
| <u>m=Self-</u>   |
| $\underline{paced+Anatomy+and+Physiology+I+Lab+Prerequisite\&utm\_content=SPS+Prerequisites+(Programmer)}$ |

48 | The Hathaway Institute

ams)+SPS:+Anatomy+and+Physiology+I+Lab+(Broad)&msclkid=de61e6ec0b8b164765708ee0 06c58373&inquiryid=7171e7e4-51b7-849e-9a54-4d75c1e0f214&transactionid=75128e5d-9b37-7e5f-1bc4-e1eb46fe4f8c

https://sbcjcweb.sbcjc.cc.ms.us/ET/Sylla/2102018110192.pdf

https://biology.dartmouth.edu/undergraduate/course-schedules-and-syllabi/biology-09
https://www.coursera.org/courses?query=biology&utm\_linknum=1&languages=de&utm\_classid=970582&index=prod\_all\_launched\_products\_term\_optimization&utm\_medium=sem&utm\_sou\_rce=bg&utm\_campaign=b2c\_namer\_x\_coursera\_ftcof\_x\_cx\_dr\_bau\_bg\_sem\_bd\_us-ca\_en\_m\_x\_17-

03\_x&campaignid=278172071&adgroupid=1209463253056290&device=c&keyword=https%3
A%2F%2Fwww.coursera.org%2F&matchtype=b&network=o&devicemodel=&adposition=&cre
ativeid=75591576031420&adgroup=01%20-%20Branded%20Search%20-%20US%20%20dynamic%20ad%20group&querystring=biology%20course%20syllabus&targetid=dat2327391238200820:loc-

190&bidmatchtype=bb&extensionid=&msclkid=5bb38ffca11719ace883e7f0a526e83f&utm\_ter m=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.coursera.org%2F&utm\_content=01%20-

%20Branded%20Search%20-%20US%20-%20dynamic%20ad%20group

https://start.apu.apus.edu/environmental-science/overview?infinity=ict2~net~mac~cmp~SOS-Vertical-Environmental%20Science-NA-US-SEARCH-BA-APU~ag~Environmental%20-%20Course%2FClass%20-

%20Phrase~ar~77515762577916~kw~Courses%20in%20ecology~mt~p&&utm\_campaign=SO S-Vertical-Environmental+Science-NA-US-SEARCH-BA-

<u>APU&utm\_medium=cpc&utm\_source=bing&utm\_term=Courses+in+ecology&utm\_content=En\_vironmental+-+Course/Class+-</u>

<u>+Phrase&msclkid=c237e406253b13b75b668c20e011a79f&gclid=c237e406253b13b75b668c20e</u> 011a79f&gclsrc=3p.ds&gad\_source=7

 $\frac{https://www.dirzon.com/file/telegram/Ethio\%20Students/G7-General\%20Science\%20-TG.pdf}{https://resources.finalsite.net/images/v1548268702/tcsedunet/atdonfsbzbmy6onie0jx/HealthScienceEducationSyllabus.pdf}$ 

 $\frac{https://ocw.mit.edu/courses/9-00sc-introduction-to-psychology-fall-2011/pages/syllabus/https://www.socialstudies.org/standards/c3}{https://www.socialstudies.org/standards/c3}$ 

 $\frac{https://www.schools.nyc.gov/docs/default-source/default-document-library/c-30-8-1-2019-final-combined-remediated-wcag2-0.pdf}{}$